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AGENDA 

DELTA FARMS 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

Carter Associates 
1708 21st Street 

Vero Beach, Florida 32960 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

March 18, 2025 
8:15 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Consider Resignation and Appointment to Board Vacancy………………………………………..Page 2  

D. Establish Quorum 

E. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

F. Comments from the Public 

G. Approval of Minutes 

1. February 18, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………………………...Page 3 

H. Reports 

1. Treasurer’s Report……………………………………………………………………………...Page 6 

2. Engineer 

 Status Report 

3. Attorney 

4. Chairman 

I. Old Business 

J. New Business 

K. Administrative Matters 

L. Board Member Comments 

M. Adjourn 
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From: Brian Randolph <brian@imgcitrus.com>  
Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 3:12 PM 
To: Frank Sakuma <bsakuma@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: Resignation from BOD 

 

Hello Frank 

I will be resigning from the Delta Farms BOD.  Tim Sallin or Melanie Ressler would like to assume my 
role on the BOD.  What steps do I need to do in order to facilitate this?   
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DELTA FARMS WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 18, 2025 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of February 18, 2025, of the Delta Farms Water Control District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 8:15 a.m. in the offices of Carter Associates located at 1708 21st 
Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Indian River Press Journal on September 30, 2024, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Sakuma stated that the attendance of Supervisors Rusty Banack and Tim Dooley constituted a 
quorum, and it was in order for the meeting to proceed. 
 
Also in attendance were District Managers Frank Sakuma and Stephanie Brown of Special District 
Services, Inc.; and District Engineer Tyler Spencer of Carter Associates. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

1. December 17, 2024, Regular Board Meeting  

The December 17, 2024, Regular Board Meeting minutes were approved on a motion made by Mr. 
Dooley, seconded by Mr. Banack, and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
G. REPORTS  
 

1. Treasurer 

Mr. Banack reviewed the financial data provided in the Board package with the Supervisors. After 
further discussion, the January 2025 Treasurer’s Report was approved on a motion made by Mr. 
Dooley, seconded by Mr. Banack, and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Mr. Banack reported to the Board on his efforts to obtain interest rate information about several 
investment products the Board may consider. During the meeting, and with information provided by 
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Mr. Paul Massey, the Board determined it would be appropriate to move $400,000 from Marine Bank 
to several investment accounts with a higher interest rate return. After further discussion, Mr. Dooley 
made a motion, seconded by Mr. Banack, and passed unanimously approving the transfer of $400,000 
from Marine Bank to Mr. Massey’s firm to be invested in two accounts: $100,000 into a 4.25% interest 
bearing account with instant access to funds; $300,00 into a 4.45% interest bearing 12-month certificate 
of deposit. 
 
Mr. Sakuma advised the Board that it would be appropriate to memorialize the authorized “signors” 
for the District bank and investment accounts. After further discussion, Mr. Dooley made a motion, 
seconded by Mr. Banack, and passed unanimously approving Mr. Wodrasaka (SDS), Mr. Banack, Mr. 
Randolf and Mr. Dooley as the signatories for Board bank accounts. 
 

2. Engineer 

Mr. Spencer discussed the new rain gauges and web-based dashboard. He also discussed pump repair 
estimates and needed gate repairs. He was asked to confirm the pricing on the repair proposals and 
report back to the Board.  
 
It was noted that the duck habitat property may be holding more water than allowed under the permit, 
and Mr. Spencer will contact the landowner to determine if any corrective action is necessary. He 
shared photos with the Board which appeared to show water sheeting into a District owned maintenance 
road.  

3. Attorney 

There was no Attorney Report at this time.  
 

4. Chairman 

There was no Chairman Report at this time. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
No old business was considered by the Board.  
     
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2025-01 Adopting Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2025-01 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
DELTA FARMS WATER CONTROL DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/2026; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Sakuma advised that the FY 2025/2026 Proposed Budget was included in the Board package. Mr. 
Dooley suggested increasing “Repairs” to $50,000. The Board consensus was to set the assessment rate 
to ($88 per acre) and make up the difference with carryover from FY 2024/2025. 
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After further discussion, Mr. Dooley made a motion, seconded by Mr. Banack, and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution No. 2025-01, Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget as amended 
and setting the Public Hearing for May 20, 2025. 
 
Mr. Sakuma was asked to bring forward example budgets at the public hearing which reflect assessment 
levels lowered by $10/20/30 respectively, and the resulting impact on fund balance drawdown. 
 
 
J.      ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  

 
There were no administrative matters. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board Member comments. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Dooley adjourned the meeting at 9:06 
a.m. There were no objections. 
 

 
 
 
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice-President 
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Delta Farms
Water Control District

 Financial Report For
February 2025
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